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PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LIMITED 

CIN: L00309KA1982PLC004960 

  Registered & Corporate Office: 16B, 1st Phase, Peenya Industrial Area Peenya 

     Bangalore KA 560058 IN  

Website www.panelectronicsindia.com, Email: cs@panelectronicsindia.com 

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Thirty-Eight (38) Annual General Meeting of the Members of PAN 

ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021 at 3:30 P.M IST 

through video conferencing/ other audio-visual means to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statement as at 31st March 2021,

and reports of the Board of Directors, Corporate Governance and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint Mr. ABHISHEK PRAKASH TALREJA Whole-time who retires by rotation and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board 

PAN Electronics (India) Limited 

Bangalore SD/- 

09/09/2021       GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA 

Managing Director | DIN 01740145 

NOTES 

1. In the View of Ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, Social distancing is a norm to followed and

pursuant to the circular No.14/2020 dated 8th April 2020, Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th

April 2020, issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) followed by circular No.20/2020

dated 5th May 2020, physical attendance of the members to the AGM venue is not

required and Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be held through video conferencing

(VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence Members can attend and participate in

the ensuring AGM though VC/OAVM and no physical presence at the meeting required.

2. Since this AGM is being held through VC/OAVM, physical attendance of the members

has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the

members will not be available for the AGM and hence the Proxy form, Attendance slip,

and Route map are not Annexed to the Notice.

3. The members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVC mode 15 minutes before and after the

scheduled time for the commencement of the meeting by the following procedure

mentioned in the Notice. The facility to participate in the AGM through VC/OAVC will be

made available to 1000 members on the first come first served basis. However, this

number shall not include the large shareholders holding 2% or more share capital,

Promoters, Institutional investors, Director, Key managerial Personnel, the chairpersons of

the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders

http://www.panelectronicsindia.com/
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Relationship Committee, Auditors, Secretarial Auditors, Scrutinizers, ect., who are allowed 

to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and

Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as

amended), and the Circulars issued by the MCA dated 8th April, 2020, 13th April, 2020

and 5th May, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in

respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has

made an arrangement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for

facilitating voting through electronic means, and independent agency for providing

necessary platform for Video Conference/ OAVM and necessary technical support as

may be required. Therefore, the facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-

voting system as well as e-voting on the day of the AGM will be provided by CDSL.

6. The Notice calling the AGM along with complete Annual Report has been uploaded on

the website of the Company. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the

Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Ltd. at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available

on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and providing

necessary platform for Video Conference/OAVM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com

7. In compliance with the MCA Circulars and the Securities and Exchange Board of India

('SEBI) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/ 2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the

28th AGM along with the Annual Report for Financial Year 2019-20 is being sent only

through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with

the Company / National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services

(India) Limited (the Depositories'). To receive shareholders' communications through

electronic means, including Annual Reports and Notices, members are requested to

kindly register/update their e-mail address with the Company and their respective

depository participant, where shares are held in electronic form. A copy of this Notice

along the Annual Report for Financial Year 2019-20 is uploaded on the Company's

website www.panelectronicsindia.com, websites of the Stock Exchange i.e. The BSE

Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of Central Depository Services (India)

Limited (CDSL) at www.evotingindia.com

8. Members joining the meeting through VC, who have not already cast their vote by means

of remote e-voting, shall be able to exercise their right to vote through e-voting at the

AGM. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may

also join the AGM through VC but shall not be entitled to cast their voting again

9. In the case of shares held in demat mode, the shareholders may contact the Depository

Participant (DP) and register the e-mail address in the demat account as per the process

followed and advised by the DP.

10. A brief profile of the Director retiring by rotation and proposed to be re-appointed at the

AGM, nature of his expertise in specific functional areas, names of companies in which he

holds directorship and membership/chairmanship of Board Committee(s), shareholding

and relationship between directors interse as stipulated under Regulation 36 of SEBI Listing

Regulation and other requisite information as per Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standards-2
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on General Meetings are provided in Annexure-1 to this Notice. 

11. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed 
from September 23, 2021 to September 29, 2021 (both days inclusive).

12. Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its notification dated November 30, 
2018 has prohibited transfer of shares in physical form. Hence with effect from April 01, 
2019, the shareholders who intend to transfer the physical shares required to dematerialize 
it before such transfer. The Company had sent necessary reminder to the shareholders to 
this effect.

For any further information relating to physical shares, shareholders are requested to 
contact the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTAs), Integrated Registry 
Management Services Private Limited situated at No. 30, Ramana Residency, 4th Cross, 
Sampige Road, Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560 003, Phone : +91-80-23460815 to 818, Fax:

+91-80-23460819, E-mail: irg@integratedindia.in

Shareholders, whose shareholdings are in electronic format are requested to direct 
change of address notification(s), registration of email address and updation of bank 
account detail to their respective depository participants.

13. Relevant documents referred to, in the accompanying Notice and the Statement are 
open for inspection by the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during 
normal business hours (9.00 A.M. to 5.00 P.M.) on all working days except Saturdays and 
Sundays, up to the conclusion of Annual General Meeting of the Company.

14. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the Member whose name appears as first 
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be 
entitled to vote.

15. Members seeking any information with regard to the Annual Accounts, are requested to 
write to the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the 
information ready at the meeting.

16. The notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report 2020-21 are by 
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the 
same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies are 
being sent by the permitted modes.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes the Member of the 
Company after dispatch of the Annual Report and holding shares as on the cut-off date 
(i.e September 22, 2021), may contact the RTAs or email to irg@integrated.in and obtain 
copy of the Annual Report.

17. The Equity Shares of the Company are available for trading in dematerialized form 
(electronic form) through depository participants. The Company has entered in to 
agreements with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services Limited (CDSL). ISIN Code No. INE648E01010. All Shareholders holding Shares in 
physical form are requested to make use of this facility. Members are requested to open 
Demat account with any of the depository participants to enable transacting in the Stock 
Exchanges.

18. Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection Fund 
Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 mandates the companies 
to transfer dividend that has remained unclaimed for a period seven years from the

mailto:alfint@vsnl.com
mailto:irg@integrated.in
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unpaid dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). Further, the 

rules also mandate the transfer of Shares with respect to the Dividend, which has not 

been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years of more to IEPF. Accordingly, there is 

no dividend remains unclaimed as on date and/or past seven years. 

19. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail

addresses are requested to register the same with Integrated Registry Management Services

Private Limited /Depositories.

20. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the

general meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular

No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The

forthcoming AGM/EGM will thus be held through through video conferencing (VC) or other

audio-visual means (OAVM).  Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing

AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM.

21. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44

of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and

MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 

providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 

transacted at the AGM/EGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 

agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting 

through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes 
by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the 

EGM/AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

22. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after

the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure

mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM

will be made available to atleast 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not

include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,

Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship

Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on

account of first come first served basis.

23. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM will be

counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies

Act, 2013.

24. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to

attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM/EGM. However, in

pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of

the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate

can attend the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting.

25. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,

the Notice calling the AGM/EGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at

www.panelectronicsindia.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the

Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at

www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively.  The AGM/EGM Notice is also

disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and

e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. www.evotingindia.com.

26. The AGM/EGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8,

http://www.evotingindia.com/
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2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 

dated May 05, 2020. 

THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR E-VOTING AND JOINING VIRTUAL MEETINGS ARE AS 

UNDER: 

(i) The voting period begins on 27th September, 2021 (09:00 A.M) and ends on 29th 

September, 2021 (05:00 P.M). During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding 
shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record 

date) of 22nd September, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 

module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to 
vote at the meeting venue.

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote

e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it 
has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public 

consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, 

by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of 

Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account holders would be able to cast their 

vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 

authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting 

process.  

(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020

on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained

with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their

mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 

Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

Type of 

shareholders 

 Login Method 
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat 

mode with 

CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through

their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for

users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit  

www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System 

Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is

also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers

i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting

service providers’ website directly.
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available

at https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available

on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 

https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will 

authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 

recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 

be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and 

also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode with 

NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-

Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password.

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services.

Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be

able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service

provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2) If the user is not  registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click   at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to

enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-

Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat 

mode) login 

through their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting 

option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 

NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you 

can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 

website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL   

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 

23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 

in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 

990 and 1800 22 44 30 

(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and

shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders” module.
3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered

with the Company.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com

and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be

used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in 

Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence 

number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank Details 

 OR Date of 

Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company,

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details

field.

(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company

selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach

‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by

the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are

eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is

strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take

utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting

on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the
option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the

Resolution.

(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A

confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to
change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your
vote.

(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and

the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as

prompted by the system.

(xvi) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting

only.

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates”
module.

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should

be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin

login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which

they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able

to cast their vote.

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have

issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system

for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/

Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory

who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz;

cs@panelectronicsindia.com (designated email address by company), if they have voted from

individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the

same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING 

DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM/ EGM is same

as the instructions mentioned above for e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company

will be displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for e-

voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the

meeting. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM/EGM.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better

experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good

speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through

Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to

Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or

LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may

register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 3 days prior

to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id,

mobile number at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during

the AGM but have queries may send their queries in advance 3 days prior to meeting

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number

at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to

express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM/EGM through VC/OAVM facility

and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are

otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system

available during the EGM/AGM.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the

EGM/AGM and if the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through

VC/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid

as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders

attending the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by

email to Company/RTA email id.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your

respective Depository Participant (DP)
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3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with

your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining

virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting 

System, you can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 

and 022-23058542/43. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to 

Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th 

Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

21. Mr. Vivek Bhat, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. FCS-7708), Bengaluru has

been appointed as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting process in a fair and transparent

manner. The Scrutinizer shall within 48 (Forty Eight) hours from the conclusion of the e-voting

period unblock the votes in the presence of at least two witnesses who are not in the

employment of the Company and make his report of the votes cast in favour or against and

shall submit to the Chairman of the Meeting.

22. The results of the Annual General Meeting shall be declared within 48 (Forty Eight) hours from

the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. The results declared along with the

Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website and on the website of CDSL
and shall be communicated to BSE Limited (BSE).

mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com


 

 

13 

 

BOARD’S REPORT 
 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Thirty-Eight Annual Report and the Audited 

Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 together with the Independent 

Auditor’s Report. 
 

FINANCIAL RESULTS:                     

(Rs. in Actuals) 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 
31.03.2021 

[Rupees] 

31.03.2020 

[Rupees]  

01 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  77,324 

        Net Revenue from Operations - - 

02 OTHER INCOME 4,99,717   

03 TOTAL REVENUE [ 1 + 2] 4,99,717 77,324 

04 EXPENSES     

 Cost of Material Consumed  - 

 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, WIP & Stock in 

Trade 
 

 77,324  

 Employee Benefit Expenses  43,95,031   50,77,546  

 Finance cost  34,99,696   18,018  

 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses  65,81,863   63,06,303  

 Other Expenses  85,95,033   38,94,237  

 Total Expenses 2,30,71,623 1,53,73,428 

05 PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL AND EXTRAORDINARY 

ITEMS AND TAX [3-4] 
(2,25,71,907) (1,52,96,104) 

06 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS   

07 PROFIT / (LOSS) BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS AND TAX [5-6] (2,25,71,907) (1,52,96,104) 

08 EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS  -   

09 PROFIT / (LOSS)  BEFORE TAX [ 7 - 8 ] (2,25,71,907) (1,52,96,104) 

10 TAX EXPENSES    

       1. Current Tax [MAT]                       -   

           Less: MAT Credit entitlement                       -   

           Net Current Tax                       -   

       2. Deferred Tax: Asset/(Liability)   

11 PROFIT / [ LOSS] FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS [9-10] 
(2,25,71,907) (1,52,96,104) 

12 PROFIT / [LOSS] FROM DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS                       -   

13 TAX EXPENSES OF DISCOUNTINUING OPERATIONS                       -   

14 PROFIT / [LOSS] FROM DISCONTINUING OPERATIONS [AFTER 

TAX] [12-13] 
                      -   

15 PROFIT / [LOSS] FOR THE PERIOD [11+14] (2,25,71,907) (1,52,96,104) 

16 EARNING PER EQUITY SHARE ( Basic and Diluted) (5.6430) (3.8240) 
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

During the financial year the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves due 

to loss incurred during the financial year. 

 

DIVIDEND: 

There is no dividend was declared or paid during the year under report. 

 

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED / RESIGNED (RETIRED) 

DURING THE FINACIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021: 

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the Companies 

Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. During 

the year there were changes in the Board of Directors.  

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of  

The composition of the Board of Directors of the Company as on the date of this report is as 

below: 

1 GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA – Managing Director 

2 ABHISHEK PRAKASH TALREJA – Whole-time Director 

3 NITESH NANIK ROHERA – Director (Independent) (Appointed – 30.05.19) 

4 AMBUSARAVAN ASHA – Director (Independent) 

5 VEENA TANDUR – Company Secretary 

6 ANIL HARGOBIND KHILNANI – CFO (KMP) 

 

SHARE CAPITAL: 

During the financial year there were no changes in the Authorized Share Capital and Paid up 

share capital of the Company. 

 

As on March 31, 2021, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company was Rs. 10,00,00,000 

(Rupees Ten Crores) and the Paid up Share Capital was Rs. 4,00,00,000/- (Rupees Four Crores 

only). 

 

DISCLOSURE REGARDING ISSUE OF EQUITY SHARES WITH DIFFERENTIAL VOTING RIGHTS AND/ OR 

ISSUE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Shares with Differential voting 

Rights and / or any Sweat Equity Shares. 

 

CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There were no changes in the nature of business during the financial year.  

 

OPERATIONS – MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 

A Industry structure and 

developments. 

Electronic Metallized Polypropylene and Polyester film 

industry is well organized in India. The market domestically 

has been growing at about 5-10% per annum. 

I I 
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B Opportunities and 

threats. 

The Company faces excessive competition resulting in 

reduction in margins and fluctuations in product price. 

C Segment wise or 

product wise 

performance. 

There are no segmental operations as per Accounting 

Standard 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 

D Outlook for the 

company. 

The Company has successfully paid Financial Institutions all 

dues. The Company has started commercial production to 

improve profitability. 

E Risks and concerns. The opening up of the Indian economy consequent to India 

becoming a member of WTO may adversely impact the 

market scenario. 

F Internal control 

system and their 

adequacy. 

The internal Control Systems of the Company are adequate 

and are constantly reviewed and supported by internal 

audit. 

G Discussion of 

financial 

performance with 

respect of 

operational 

performance. 

The negative financial performance of the Company is 

mainly due to its operational performance. Benefits from 

write backs of Financial Institution has resulted in positive Net 

profit. 

H Material 

development in 

human resources / 

industrial relations 

front, including 

number of people 

employed 

The Company continues to give thrust to human resource 

development and industrial relations. The Company effected 

reduction, maximum of its employees during the year, by 

paying suitable compensation as per Law. Permanent 

Employees: 3 

 

FRAUD REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS DURING THE YEAR: 

Not applicable as there were no such instances during the year. 

 

CURRENT YEAR OUTLOOK AND COVID-19 IMPACT: 

 

Indian economy rebounded well post the lockdowns due to 1st wave last year. Unfortunately, 

with vaccination levels are at a very low levels in India, precautions thrown in the wind, the 

second wave has hit India severely with infection and death reaching levels, a few believed 

possible. With lockdowns imposed again by most states, the economic activities have ground to 

a minimum in many areas. After a robust pick up till March 2021, a significant downtrend is visible 

from April onwards. This is expected to continue during the year. Unless the vaccination picks up 

well, experts believe, the 3rd wave could also be devastating in India. The Western world, 

particularly, US, UK & EU, appear in better position, thanks to vaccination and better adherence 

to Covid-19 protocols despite going through difficult Covid-19 outbreaks. However, the business 

outlook is still uncertain in these geographies due to shortage of electronic components, along 

with Covid-19 uncertainty. Under these circumstances, it is difficult to assess the economic 

activity for the near term. The electronic industry’s prospects are equally uncertain. The year is 
expected to be a very challenging and difficult. Your Company is taking steps to minimize the 
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negative impact of Covid-19. With an excellent team in place, clearly focused on optimizing 

costs and improving performance, your Company is confident of facing these uncertainties and 

emerge as a stronger Company, in the medium term. 

 

DEPOSITS: 

During the year the Company has not given any deposits nor taken, hence there no 

transactions towards deposits as on March 31, 2021. 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY, 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT: 

There were no material changes and commitments between the end of the financial year and 

the date of the Report, which affect the financial position of the Company.  

 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, INVESTMENTS, GUARANTEES GIVEN OR SECURITY PROVIDED BY THE 

COMPANY: 

During the year the Company has not provided any loan/ guarantee / security which fall under 

the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.                                               

 

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES REFERRED TO IN SECTION 

188(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

All related party transactions which were entered into during the financial year were on at arm’s 
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business and with the omnibus approval of the 

Audit Committee. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the 

Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons 

which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

 

All related party transactions, wherever applicable, are placed before the Audit Committee. 

The quarterly disclosures of transactions with related parties are made to the Audit Committee. 

In compliance with the provisions of Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, particulars of 

contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in the provisions of Section 188(1) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 are enclosed, in the Form AOC-2, as part of this report as “Annexure – 

2”.  
 

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 days 

between two consecutive Meetings. During the financial year, 5 (Five) Meetings were held on 

June 20, 2020, June 30, 2020, September 15, 2020, November 14, 2020 and February 14, 2021. 

Agenda of the Meeting is circulated to the Directors in advance. Minutes of the Meetings of the 

Board of Directors are circulated amongst the Members of the Board for their perusal.  

 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
In pursuance of Section 134 (3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors of the 

Company confirms and submits that: 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been 

followed and there have been no material departure; 
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ii. the selected accounting policies were applied consistently and the judgments and 

estimates made are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021and of the profits of the Company for the 

year ended on that date; 

iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. the annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’ basis; 
v. adequate system of internal financial controls has been laid down and the said system is 

operating effectively; and  

vi. Proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been 

devised and such systems were adequate and are operating effectively. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND BUSINES RESPONSIBILITY REPORT: 

Being a Listed Company, necessary measures are taken to comply with SEBI Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR) as amended from time to time. A report 

on Corporate Governance, along with a certificate of compliance from a Practicing Chartered 

Accountant, forms part of this report.   

The Business Responsibility Report is not required. 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

The Company has Risk Management Policy in place.  To oversight in the area of financial risks 

and controls.  Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed 

through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. 

The development and implementation of Risk Management Policy has been covered in the 

management discussion and analysis, which forms part of this report. The Company has taken 

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance Policy.   
 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

Conservation of energy is one of the highest priority measures directly supervised by the senior 

management of the Company. During the year manufacture activity stopped due to 

transferring plant from Hosur to Peenya. 

 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION & INNOVATION: 

a) Research and Development (R&D): During the year company not done any 

manufacture or any commercial activity due to transferring plant Hosur to Peenya.  

b) Expenditure on Research and Development: Nil 

c) Technology Absorption, Adaptation, Innovation and particulars of imported 

technology: 

1)      The Company has not imported any technology during the financial year. 

2)      The Company has not developed, innovative and path-breaking products. 

 

GREEN INITIATIVES: 
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The Company has initiated a sustainability initiative with the aim of going green and minimizing 

our impact on the environment. Like the previous years, this year too, the Company is publishing 

only the statutory disclosures in the print version of the Annual Report.  

 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTFLOW: 

The Company earnings Nil and outflow Nil during the financial year under review.  

 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS: 

Industrial relations have been cordial and constructive, which have helped your Company to 

achieve production targets. 

 

DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:  

The Company has received necessary declarations from each Independent Directors pursuant 

to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he meets the criteria of 

Independence laid down in the provisions of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Further, the Board hereby confirms that all the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the 

conditions as specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 

and all the Independent Directors are independent of the management.  

  

BOARD EVALUATION: 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual performance 

evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the 

working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and Compliance Committees. 

 

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

Your Company has an Audit Committee comprising of Mr. NITESH NANIK ROHERA, as Chairman 

of the Committee, Mr. Abhishek Prakash Talreja and Mr. Ambusaravan Asha, as other Members 

of the Committee. The composition of the Committee is in compliance with the provisions of 

Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. Reconstitution of the Committee was undertaken post 

retirement of two Directors and as on date of this report, the composition of the Committee is as 

follows: 

1. Nitesh Nanik Rohera – Director (Independent)  

2. Abhishek Prakash Talreja – Whole-time Director 

3. Ambusaravan Asha – Director (Independent) 

 

AUDITORS: 

i. Statutory Auditors: 

M/s. B. N. Subramanya & Co., (Firm Registration No: 004142S) Chartered Accountants, hold office 

until the conclusion of the five year period. As required by the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013, the auditors to be appointed by members at the AGM. 

Certificate of the Statutory Auditors, regarding COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE 

GOVERNANCE forms part of the Annual report. 

 

ii. Secretarial Auditor: 

The Board has appointed Mr. Vivek Bhat, a Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.FCS-

7708)) as the Secretarial Auditor as per the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 

for the financial year 2020-21. The Secretarial Audit Report issued by him is enclosed as 

“Annexure – 3” to this Report. 
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QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE STATUTORY 

AUDITORS 

i. Statutory Auditors: 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Statutory Auditors’ Report which require any 
explanation from the Board of Directors. The Statutory Auditors have expressed an unmodified 

opinion in the audit reports in respect of the Audited standalone and consolidated Financial 

Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021. 

 

ii. Secretarial Auditor: 

There are qualification and adverse remarks mention in Secretarial Auditor Report, company 

consider the same and taking proactive steps to make it proper and some of the compliance 

we are not able to complete due to incurring loss and negative net worth.   

 

HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (HSE) 

 

The Company’s efforts towards reinforcing a positive safety culture have resulted in injury free 
atmosphere. Further, during the financial year, no occupational illness case was reported. Due 

to continued efforts to conserve water and energy, specific water and energy consumption also 

got reduced. 

 

REGULATORY / COURT ORDERS: 

There were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals 

impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 

The Company has in place a Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal 

Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 

harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under 

this Policy. 

 

Summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the financial year 

2020-21: 

 

No. of complaints received: NIL 

No. of complaints disposed off: NA 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

The information required pursuant to Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees 

of the Company. During the year there no such employees applicable. 

 

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

The Company complies with applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Institute 

of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

CAUTIONARY NOTE: 

Management Discussion and Analysis forming part of this Report is in compliance with Corporate 

Governance Standards, SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
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with Stock Exchanges and such statements may be “forward looking” within the meaning of 
applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those 

expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to the Company's 

operations include economic conditions affecting demand/supply and price conditions in the 

domestic and overseas markets/currency fluctuations in which the Company operates, changes 

in the Government regulations, tax laws and other statutes and other incidental factors. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

The Directors place on record their appreciation for valuable contribution made by employees 

at all levels, active support and encouragement received from various Governmental agencies, 

Company’s Bankers, Customers, vendors, distributors, Business Associates and other 

Acquaintances.  

 

Your Directors recognize the continued support extended by all the Shareholders and gratefully 

acknowledge with a firm belief that the support and trust will continue in the future. 

                                                                                    

By Order of the Board 

PAN Electronics (India) Limited 

 

Bangalore          SD/- 

30/06/2021        GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA 

Managing Director | DIN 01740145 
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ANNEXURE TO THE BOARD’S REPORT 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS 

 

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:  
The Company’s philosophy is sustained profitable growth and increase in stakeholders’ 
value. This will be done through proper transparency and disclosures, adequate internal 

controls in its business practices and risk management, proper communication and good 

standards in safety, health, environment management, highest standards in accounting 

fidelity, product and service quality. The Company complies with the listing requirements of 

the Stock Exchanges, where its Shares are listed and endeavors to meet necessary listing 

guidelines. The Company has complied with all the provisions of Companies Act, SEBI 

guidelines/regulations and also those of the Stock Exchanges guidelines and is committed 

to good Corporate Governance. The Board fully understands and takes responsibility for its 

commitments to stakeholders, employees, vendors, customers and the communities where 

it operates. The primary objective of customer satisfaction is relentlessly pursued. Following is 

a report on the status and progress on various aspects of Corporate Governance of the 

Company. 

 

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

a. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE MEETINGS ATTENDED BY RESPECTIVE DIRECTORS DURING 

THE YEAR AS UNDER: 

Name of the Director Category   

Board 

Meetings 

held 

Board 

Meetings 

Attended 

Attended 

Last 

AGM 

Mr. GULLU GELLARAM 

TALREJA 

Managing Director 5 5 Yes 

Mr. ABHISHEK PRAKASH 

TALREJA 

Whole time Director 5 5 Yes 

Mrs. AMBUSARAVAN ASHA Director 5 5 Yes 

Mr. NILESH RATHNAKAR 

DESHPANDE 

Additional Director 

(Independent) 

5 5 Yes 

 

  Skills / Expertise / Competencies of the Board of Directors: 

The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of 

Directors:  

i. Knowledge on Company’s businesses , policies and culture (including the Mission, Vision 

and Values) major risks / threats and potential opportunities and knowledge of the 

industry in which the Company operates;  

ii. Business Strategy, Sales & Marketing, Corporate Governance, Forex Management, 

Administration, Decision Making; 

iii. Financial and Management skills  

iv. Technical / Professional skills and specialized knowledge in relation to Company’s 
business 
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Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary: 

A Certificate from Mr. Vivek Bhat, Practicing Company Secretary confirming that none of 

the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 

appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of 

India /Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority is enclosed as Annexure – 

4. 

 

b. DETAILS OF THE BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 

The Meetings of the Board are held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more than 120 

days between two consecutive Meetings. The Board of Directors duly met 5 (Five) times 

during the year on: 

1. June 20, 2020 

2. June 30, 2020 

3. September 15, 2020 

4. November 14, 2020 

5. February 14, 2021  

None of the Non-Executive Directors has any material pecuniary relationship or transactions 

with the Company.  

 

3. OUTSIDE DIRECTORSHIPS / COMMITTEE POSITIONS AS ON MARCH 31, 2021: 

Name of the Directors In Listed 

Compa

nies 

Name of the 

Listed Entity 

and category 

In Unlisted 

Public Limited 

Companies 

As Chairman / 

Member of Board 

Committees 

Mr. GULLU GELLARAM 

TALREJA 

Nil NA GEMINI 

DYEING AND 

PRINTING 

MILLS LIMITED 

Nil 

Mr. ABHISHEK PRAKASH 

TALREJA 

Nil NA Nil Nil 

Mr. NITESH NANIK ROHERA Nil NA Nil Nil 

Mrs. AMBUSARAVAN ASHA Nil NA Nil Nil 

   Notes: 

a. Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under Section 8 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 are excluded for the above purpose.  

b. None of the Directors is a member in neither more than 10 Committees, nor a Chairman 

in more than 5 Committees across all Companies in which he is a Director.  

 

4. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Company has complied with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, relating to the composition of the Audit Committee. During the year, the 

composition of the Audit Committee was as follows –  

1. Nitesh Nanik Rohera – Chairman 

2. Abhishek Prakash Talreja – Member 

3. AMBUSARAVAN ASHA – Member 
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Chairman, Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer, Internal 

Auditors and Statutory Auditors are invitees to the Meeting. Company Secretary of the 

Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee Meetings. 

              

The Audit Committee Meetings were held at regular intervals with a time gap of not more 

than 120 days between two consecutive meetings. During the year, the Audit Committee 

has met 4 (Four) times on 30 June 2020, 15 September 2020, 14 November 2020, and 14 

February 2021 

 

The attendance details of each Member of the Committee are as below:   

 Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended 

Nitesh Nanik Rohera 4 4 

Abhishek Prakash Talreja   4 4 

Ambusaravan Asha  4 4 

 

The terms of reference / role of the Audit Committee cover the matters specified for Audit 

Committees under Regulation 18 and Part C of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as the provisions of Section 177 of the 

Companies Act, 2013. The brief description of the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee is given below:       

a. Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its 
financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and 

credible;   

b. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of 

auditors of the listed Company;  

c. Approval of payment to the Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by them;  

d. Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and Auditor's Report 

thereon before submission to the Board for approval,  

e. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial results before submission   to 

the board for approval; 

f. Reviewing the statement of significant related party transactions; 

g. Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings; 

 

5. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (NRC): 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has 

constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, the following: 

(a) Chairman: Chairman of the Committee shall be an Independent Director as may be 

elected by the members of the Committee. 

(b) Quorum: Quorum for Meeting of the Committee shall be a minimum of two members 

provided one of them shall always be an Independent Director. 

(c) Frequency of Meetings: The Committee may meet at such times as may be deemed 

necessary. 

(d) Role: The Role of the Committee shall include inter-alia the following: 
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• Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a Director and recommend to the Board a Policy, relating to the 

remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;  

• Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board 

including carrying out evaluation of every Director’s performance;  
• Devising a Policy on Board diversity;  

• Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be 

appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and 

recommend to the Board for their appointment and removal.  

• Such other matters as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, listing 

agreement and by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.  

• Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 

management. 

(e) Invitees: The Committee may invite such executives of the Company and such other 

persons as it may consider appropriate. 

(f) Secretary to the Committee: The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the 

Committee who shall flag actions and serve as executive support to the Committee. 

 The composition of the Committee during the year was as follows:          

1. Nitesh Nanik Rohera – Chairman 

2. Abhishek Prakash Talreja – Member  

3. Ambusaravan Asha – Member 

 

During the financial year Once (1) Meeting of the Committee were held on June 30, 2021  

The attendance details of each Member of the Committee are as below:   

Name of the Director No. of Meetings held No. of Meetings attended 

Nitesh Nanik Rohera 1 1 

Abhishek Prakash 

Talreja – Whole-time 

Director 

1 1 

Ambusaravan Asha – 

Director 

(Independent) 

1 1 

  

Details of the sitting fees fixed by the Board for attending the Board / Committee Meetings 

are as below: 

Board Meeting Rs. 2,500 

Audit Committee Meeting Rs. 2,500 

Investor Grievance Committee Rs. 2,500 

Other Committee Meeting Rs. 2,500 

 

6. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS’ MEETING & PERFORMANCE EVALUATION: 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on June 30, 2021, inter alia, 

and transacted the following business:  

• Evaluation of the performance of the Non-Independent Directors and the Board in 

general 

• Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company taking into account the 

views of the Executive and Non- Executive Directors 
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• Evaluation of the process of flow of information between the Management and the 

Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties  

All the Independent Directors were present in the Meeting. 

 

7. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHP COMMITTEE: 
During the year, the composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship committee was as 
follows:  

      

1. Abhishek Prakash Talreja – Chairman Member 

2. Ambusaravan Asha – Member 

 

This Committee monitors and addresses investors complaints, transfer of Shares, transmission 

etc. based on the information provided by the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer 
Agents. No queries/complaints were received from the Shareholders during the period 

except change of address and non-receipt of dividend warrants and non-receipt of share 

certificates. All of them have been addressed to the satisfaction of the Shareholders. As of 

March 31, 2021, no complaints were pending.      

     

8. SHARES HELD BY NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: 

The Non-Executive Directors as on March 31, 2021, no one hold the shares in PAN Electronics 

(India) Limited, are as under: 

 

9. GENERAL MEETINGS: 

The details of holding of last three Annual General Meetings of the Company are given 

below:       

Annual General Meetings: 

Year Date Time Location 

2017-18 29/09/2018 03 .00 p.m 

Hotel Premier Comforts, 13/2, S.M. Road, 

Ayyappa Temple Road, Jalahalli Cross (West), 

Bangalore – 560 015 

2018-19 30/09/2019 03 .00 p.m 

Hotel Premier Comforts, 13/2, S.M. Road, 

Ayyappa Temple Road, Jalahalli Cross (West), 

Bangalore – 560 015 

2019-20 30/12/2020 03 .00 p.m 
Through video conference 

2020-21 30/09/2021 03.00 p.m 
Through video conference 

     

        Special Resolutions passed in the previous three Annual General Meetings (AGM): 

Date of AGM Special Resolutions 

29.09.2018 To appoint Mrs. Ambusaravan Asha (DIN: 08147485) as an Independent 

Director in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or 

without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 

30.09.2019 To appoint Mr. NILESH RATHNAKAR DESHPANDE (DIN: 01998076), as an 

Additional Director in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass 

with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution 
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30.12.2020 To Appoint of Mr. NILESH RATHNAKAR DESHPANDE (DIN: 01998076) as a 

Director of the company as non-executive Director in this regard, to 

consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) the 

following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution 

30.09.2021 NIL 

        

10.  DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE 

ACCOUNT PURSUANT TO SEBI CIRCULAR NO. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2015-16/013, DATED 2ND 

SEPTEMBER, 2015: 

As per the above mentioned Circular, there are “Nil” Shares in the Demat Suspense 
Account or Unclaimed Suspense Account.  

         

However the Company proposes to transfer unclaimed shares to the Suspense Account in 

the current year, after complying with necessary procedures as stipulated in SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  

 

11. NAME AND DESIGNATION OF THE COMPLIANCE OFFICER:  

Mrs. Veena Tandur Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company. She can 

be contacted for any investors’ related matters of the Company. E-mail: 

cs@panelectronicsindia.com. 

 

12. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

Related party transactions:  

During the year, the Company had not entered into any material related party transaction. 

Details of related party transaction are disclosed along with the compliance report on 

Corporate Governance.  

 

The Company continued to comply with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges, SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other Statutory 

Authorities on all matters related to capital markets during the last three years. No penalties 

have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other Statutory 

Authorities relating to the above. 

 

 

Accounting Treatment:  

The Financial Statement of the Company is prepared as per the prescribed Accounting 

Standards and reflects true and far view of the business transactions in the Corporate 

Governance. 

        

Details of fees paid by the Company its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory 

auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a 

part as per Clause 10 (k), Part C of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015: 

Below are the details of fees paid (on a consolidated basis) by the Company to B.N. 

Subramanya & Co, Statutory Auditors and other network entities, which they are part: 

   (INR) 

mailto:cs@panelectronicsindia.com
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Fees paid to B.N. Subramanya & Co, for Audit and related services 1,25,000 

Total 1,25,000 

Disclosure of transaction with any person or entity belonging to the Promoter or Promoter 

Group, who holds 10 % or more: 

Mr. GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA in the capacity of Chairman and Managing Director, during 

the year, the Company has not entered in to any transaction with Mr. GULLU GELLARAM 

TALREJA, Promoters and holding more than 10% of the shareholding of the Company. 

Details of remuneration are already disclosed in this report. 

CFO Certification: 

Director and Chief Financial Officer have certified to the Board of Directors, Inter alia, the 

accuracy of Financial Statements and adequacy of Internal Controls for the Financial 

Reporting purpose as required by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

Code of Conduct: 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and is available on the website of the 

Company at www.panelectronicsindia.com  

13. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

These results are uploaded on the website of the Stock Exchanges immediately after the

Board approves the same. Half yearly results were sent to each Shareholder along with a

review of the business. The website of the Company i.e., www.panelectronicsindia.com

14. MANDATORY / NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS:

The Company has complied with the requirements relating to Corporate Governance as

mandated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

15. CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company has obtained the Certificate from a Practicing Chartered Accountant

regarding compliance with the provisions relating to Corporate Governance as set out in

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

16. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

a. Thirty Eight Annual General Meeting :

       Date    Time Venue 

     September 30, 2021 3:30 p.m Through video conference 

Join Zoom Meeting 

https://zoom.us/j/93240681355?pwd=V2Jkdk0zMnhE

S1BUdlZadVNDTExvdz09  

Meeting ID: 932 4068 1355 

Passcode: 871591 

Financial Calendar: 

http://www.panelectronicsindia.com/
http://www.panelectronicsindia.com/
https://zoom.us/j/93240681355?pwd=V2Jkdk0zMnhES1BUdlZadVNDTExvdz09
https://zoom.us/j/93240681355?pwd=V2Jkdk0zMnhES1BUdlZadVNDTExvdz09
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 Financial Year    - April 2020 to March 2021 

 First Quarter Results   - In June 2020 

 Half Yearly Results    - In September 2020 

 Third Quarter Results   - In November 2020 

 Results for the year ended 31st March - By July 2021 

 Book Closure Date   - December 23, 2020 to December 29, 2020  

(both days inclusive)   

 Scrip Code    - BSE- 517397 

 Stock Exchange     - BSE Limited, Mumbai    

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) for National Securities Depository Limited 

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL): INE-399C01030. 

 

b. Share Transfer System:   

The Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, Integrated Registry Management 
Services Private Limited has adequate infrastructure to process the share transfers. 

Periodically, a Practising Company Secretary audits the system and a Certificate to that 

effect is issued and the same is filed with the Stock Exchanges. Additionally, reconciliation 

on Share Capital audits and Dematerialization related scrutiny are conducted quarterly by 

a Practising Company Secretary.  

         

With effect from April 01, 2019, transfer of shares in physical form is not allowed. Shareholders 

are requested to contact our RTA for more details. 

 

c. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 

Equity Shares of the total Equity Capital are held in dematerialized form with NSDL and 

CDSL. 

 

d. Registered Office / Address for correspondence: 

 16B, 1st Phase, Peenya Industrial Area Peenya 

Bangalore KA 560058 IN  

E-mail: cs@panelectronicsindia.com 

 

e. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2021: 

  CATEGORY No. of % of 

    Shares held Shareholding 

A Promoter's Holding     

1 Promoters     

            -    Indian Promoters  2826827 70.67 

            -    Foreign Promoters - - 

                 Promoters     

2 Persons acting in concert - - 

             Sub-Total (1+2) 2817560 70.44 

B Non-Promoters Holding     

3 Institutional Investors     

a. Mutual Funds and UTI - - 

b. Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies 3200 0.08 
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  (Central/State Govt. Institutions, Non-government     

  Institutions)     

c. FIIs - - 

             Sub-Total  (3a+b+c) 3200 0.08 

4 Others     

a. Private Corporate Bodies 28300 0.71 

b Indian Public 1099273 27.48 

c. NROs/NRIs/OCBs  41800 1.05 

d. Clearing Members 600 0.02 

             Sub-Total  (4a+b+c+d) 1169973 29.25 

  Grand Total 4000000 100.00 

 

Shareholders holding Shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to 

their respective Depository Participant (DP). 

 

f. Distribution of shareholding according to size class as on March 31, 2021: 

DISTRIBUTION OF HOLDINGS 

No. of % of Shareholding of No. of Amount Rs. % of total 

share Total Nominal of Rs.10/- shares     

Holders           

2183 86.97   Up to 5,000 384649 3846490 9.62 

195 7.77 5,001 10,000 167825 1678250 4.20 

72 2.87 10,001 20,000 107703 1077030 2.69 

24 1.05 20,001 30,000 60980 609800 1.52 

14 0.56 30,001 40,000 50200 502000 1.26 

5 0.20 40,001 50,000 23615 236150 0.59 

11 0.44 50,001 1,00,000 76584 765840 1.91 

6 0.24 1,00,001 & above 3128444 31284440 78.21 

2569 100.00 TOTAL   4000000 40000000 100.00 

 

g. Shares held in Physical and Electronic mode as on March 31, 2021: 

Category 
No. of share 

holders  

No. of Shares % to total shareholding 

Physical Shares 1650 621200 15.53 

Electronic Shares 806 3378800 84.47 

Total 2569 4000000 100.00 

  

h. Listing of Shares: 

The Company’s Shares are listed at:  
BSE Limited 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 

Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001 

 

i. Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 

Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited 

No. 30, Ramana Residency, 4th Cross, Sampige Road 

Malleswaram, Bangalore - 560 003 
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Tel: +91-80-23460815  

Fax: +91-80-23460819 

E-mail: irg@integratedindia.in 

 

j. Nomination Facility: 

The provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, introduced the concept of 

nomination by securities holders. The facility is mainly useful for all holders holding the Shares 

in single name.  Investors are advised to avail this facility, especially investors holding 

securities in single name, to avoid the lengthy process of transmission formalities.  

 

The nomination form may be obtained from the Company/ Registrars and Share Transfer 

Agents on request.  

 

However, if the Shares are held in dematerialized form, the nomination has to be conveyed 

by the Shareholders to their respective Depository Participant (DP) directly, as per the format 

prescribed by them.  

 

k. Shareholders’ Rights:  
Upon the approval of quarterly and annual Financial Results by the Board of Directors, these 

are sent to the Stock Exchanges with whom the Shares of the Company are listed. 

 

17. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT  

A Industry structure 

and 

developments. 

Electronic Metallized Polypropylene and Polyester film 

industry is well organized in India. The market domestically 

has been growing at about 5-10% per annum. 

B Opportunities and 

threats. 

The Company faces excessive competition resulting in 

reduction in margins and fluctuations in competitive price. 

C Segment wise or 

product wise 

performance. 

There are no segmental operations as per Accounting 

Standard 17 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India. 

D Outlook for the 

company. 

The Company has successfully paid Financial Institutions all 

dues. The Company has started commercial production to 

improve profitability. 

E Risks and 

concerns. 

The opening up of the Indian economy consequent to India 

becoming a member of WTO may adversely impact the 

market scenario. 

F Internal control 

system and their 

adequacy. 

The internal Control Systems of the Company are adequate 

and are constantly reviewed and supported by internal 

audit. 

G Discussion of 

financial 

performance with 

respect of 

The negative financial performance of the Company is 

mainly due to its operational performance. Benefits from 

write backs of Financial Institution has resulted in positive Net 

profit. 

mailto:irg@integratedindia.in
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operational 

performance. 

H Material 

development in 

human resources 

/ industrial 

relations front, 

including number 

of people 

employed 

The Company continues to give thrust to human resource 

development and industrial relations. The Company effected 

reduction, maximum of its employees during the year, by 

paying suitable compensation as per Law. Permanent 

Employees: 3 

 

By Order of the Board 

PAN Electronics (India) Limited 

 

Bangalore          SD/- 

30/06/2021        GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA 

Managing Director | DIN 01740145 
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Annexure – 1 

Form No. AOC-2 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with 

related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 

certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto 

 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : NIL 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship : 

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions : 

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions : 

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: 

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions : 

(f) Date (s) of approval by the Board : 

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any : 

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188 :  

 

2.  Details of the material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis : 
Name of the Related Party Nature of 

relationship 

Nature of 

transactions 

Duration 

of 

Contract 

Salient 

terms 

Amount 

 

Gemini Dyeing and Printing Mills 

Limited 

Common 

Directors 

Sales / 

Purchase 

NA NA 2,35,93,537 

 

 

Annexure – 2 

 

 

Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 

For the Financial Year ended 31st March 2021 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members 

M/s Pan Electronics (India) Limited 

16B, 1st Phase, Peenya Industrial Area 

Bangalore – 560058. 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Pan Electronics (India) Limited (hereinafter 

called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a 

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 

my opinion thereon.  

 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 

audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
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financial year ended on 31st March, 2021,complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by M/s Pan Electronics (India) Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 

2021 according to the provisions of: 

 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder; 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made thereunder; 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder 

to the extent of investment in overseas subsidiary and External Commercial Borrowings; 

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’)  
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements)Regulations, 2009; 

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents)Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009; and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 

VI. Other laws applicable to the Company. 

 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the BSE Limited. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned 

below 

1. The Company has not given paper advertisement for Board meeting Notice, AGM 

Notice and for financial Results. 

2. The Company has not appointed Internal Auditor during the year. 

3. There was a delay in filing of Shareholding pattern under Regulation 31, Compliance 

Certificate under regulation 7(3) and certificate under Regulation 40(9) of SEBI LODR and 

reconciliation of share capital audit under SEBI-DP Reg.55A. 

4. There was a delay in filing under Regulation 30(1) and 30(2) –SEBI Takeover Regulations 

2011. 

I further report that  
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The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted. There was no proper balance of 

Non- Executive Directors and Independent Directors during part of the reporting period. The 

Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 

review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice is given 

to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were 

sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 

with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 

applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

 

_____SD/-_____ 

Place: Bengaluru         Vivek Bhat 

Date: 30.06.2021         FCS No.: 7708 

                                                                                               C P No.: 8426 

 

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms 

an integral part of this report. 

 

Annexure A 

To, 

 

The Members 

M/s Pan Electronics (India) Limited 

16B, 1st Phase, Peenya Industrial Area 

Bangalore – 560058. 

 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 

on my audit. 

 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 

secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a 

reasonable basis for my opinion. 

 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
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5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 

regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited 

to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 

conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

_____SD/-_____ 

Place: Bengaluru         Vivek Bhat 

Date: 30.06.2021         FCS No.: 7708 

                                                                                               C P No.: 8426 

 

Annexure – 3 

 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS: 

(As per clause C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 read with regulation 34(3) of the said Listing 

Regulations). 

 

To 

The Members, 

M/s Pan Electronics (India) Limited 

16/B, 1st Phase, Peenya Industrial Area, 

Bangalore – 560058. 

 

As required by item 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, based on the declaration 

given by the directors and information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 

authorized representatives and information which is available in the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

online portal, I certify that none of the directors on the board of M/s Pan Electronics (India) 

Limited have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of 

companies by the SEBI/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 

_____SD/-_____ 

Place: Bengaluru         Vivek Bhat 

Date: 30.06.2021         FCS No.: 7708 

                                                                                               C P No.: 8426 

 

CEO & CFO CERTIFICATION 

 

We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 

31, 2021and certify, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that:  

1. these statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs, and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations; 

2. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement, or omit any material 

fact, or contain statements that might be misleading; 

3. no transactions entered into by the company during the year were fraudulent, illegal or 

violative of the Company’s code of conduct and no instances of fraud took place; 

https://taxguru.in/sebi/sebi-listing-obligations-disclosure-requirements-regulations-2015.html
https://taxguru.in/sebi/sebi-listing-obligations-disclosure-requirements-regulations-2015.html
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4. we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting; 

5. we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company 

and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design 

or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and have taken steps to 

rectify the same, wherever found; 

6. significant changes in internal control over financial  reporting, as well as changes in 

accounting policies, if any, have been intimated to the auditors and the Audit 

Committee and been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; 

 

_______________ 

ANIL HARGOBIND KHILNANI      

CFO                                                                 

 

Place: Bengaluru               

Date: 30/06/2021 

 

 

DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

I, GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA Managing Director of PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LIMITED hereby 

declare that all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed for the year 

ended March 31, 2021compliance with the code of conduct of the Company laid down for 

them. 

 

 

 

Place: Bengaluru      GULLU GELLARAM TALREJA  

Date: 30/06/2021                                                                           Managing Director   

                                                                                                         DIN: 01740145 

 

 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

To the members of Pan Electronics (India) Limited 

 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pan Electronics 

(India) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended on 31 March, 2021, as stipulated in 

Regulations 17 to 27, Clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of 

Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). 
 

Managements’ Responsibility 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the 

Management. This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of 

internal control procedures to ensure the compliance with the conditions of Corporate 

Governance stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
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Auditors’ Responsibility  
 

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted 

by the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as 

stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 

statements of the Company. 

 

We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable 

generally accepted auditing standards in India, the Guidance Note on Certification of 

Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and 
Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the ICAI which requires 

that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI. 

 

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality 

Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial 

Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the 

relevant records and the explanations given to us and the representations made by the 

Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions 

of Corporate Governance as stipulated in SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements] 

Regulations 2015, subject to the following: 

 

• The Number of directors stipulated by SEBI [Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements] Regulations 2015 in Nomination and Remuneration committee is atleast 3 

directors, but the company has appointed only 2 directors. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company.   

 

                                                              

For B N Subramanya & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 004142S 

 

_______SD/-___________ 

Girish Hoysala 

Partner 

Membership No. 220210 

 

Place: Bengaluru               

Date: 09/09/2021 

  



 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

TO THE MEMBERS OF M/s. PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LIMITED 

 

 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

  

We have audited the standalone financial statements of M/s. PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) 

LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31st March 

2021, and the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 

income), standalone statement of changes in equity and standalone statement of cash flows 

for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including a 

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs 

of the Company as at 31st March 2021, and Loss and other comprehensive income, changes 

in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the 

Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as 

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 

these matters. 

 

We did not find any significant matter during the course of the audit and the same has been 

communicated to the management of the company. Accordingly, it has been determined that 

nothing has been found to report under this heading. 
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon  

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include 

the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to 

be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 

a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We 

have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of 

the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial 

performance including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 

safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance 

of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do so. 

 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting 

process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 

a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 

but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 

material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

a. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 

those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

b. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 

the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 

c. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 

d. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to 

cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

e. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 

our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by 

the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 

we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 

4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books; 

 

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss 

(including other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in 

equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account. 

 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the 

Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014; 

 

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 

31st 2021, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualified as on March 31st 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of 

section 164 (2) of the Act; 

 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 

to our separate Report in “Annexure B”; 

 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us: 

         

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its 

financial position;  

 

(ii) The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company; 
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3. As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid 

remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and 

limits laid down under Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act 

 

For B N Subramanya & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 004142S 

 

 

 

 

Girish Hoysala 

Partner 

Membership No. 220210 

 

UDIN: 21220210AAAAIZ2015 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date:  30th June, 2021 
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

 

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the 

Company on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2021, we 

report that: 

 

i) Fixed Assets 

 

a) The Company has maintained proper records of fixed assets showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of the assets. 

 

b) The Management has conducted a physical verification of the fixed assets during the 

year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  

 

c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company. 

 

 

 

ii) Inventory 

 

The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management at 

reasonable intervals and there are no material discrepancies noticed. 

 

 

iii) Loans and Advances 

 

The Company has not granted loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP’s or 

other parties covered in the register maintained u/s 189 of the Act. 

  

 

iv) Loans/Investments/Guarantees 

 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, provisions 

of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with in respect 

of loans, investments, guarantees, and security given by the company. 

 

v) Deposits 

 

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted 

any deposits, consequently directives of the RBI and the provision of Section 73 and 76 

or any other relevant provision of the Companies Act,2013, and the rules framed there 

under are not applicable to the company. 

 

vi) Cost records 

 

According to information and explanation given to us, the company is not required to 

maintain cost records as per sub section (1) of section 148 of the Act, hence no comment 

is required on the same. 
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vii) Statutory Dues 

 

a) The Company is irregular in depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed 

statutory dues relating to Income tax. The company has the following arrears of 

statutory dues as at the balance sheet date which were outstanding for more than 6 

months from the date they became payable 

 

Name of Statute 
Nature of the 

dues 
Amount in Rs. 

Period to 

which the 

amount 

relates 

Due date 

Income Tax Act,1961 
Tax Deducted at 

Source(Sec-194C) 
Rs.3,264 

March,2020 to 

July, 2020 

7th of 

Subsequent 

month 

Income Tax Act,1961 
Tax Deducted at 

Source(Sec-194J) 
Rs.6,375 September,2020 

7th of 

Subsequent 

month 

Goods and Service 

Act,2017 
IGST Rs.28,07,766 June,2020 

20th of 

Subsequent 

month 

     

 

However, the company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities other 

undisputed statutory dues including PF, ESI, Income Tax, Goods and service tax, 

custom duty, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it. 

 

b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of Income tax or Sales tax 

or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or duty of customs which have not been 

deposited on account of any dispute.  

 

 

viii) Repayment of Loans 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank, Government or dues 

to debenture holders. 

 

 

ix)     Diversion of Funds 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, there were no further public offer during 
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the year. The company has obtained term loan and has applied the funds for furtherance 

of business. 

 

 

x) Frauds noticed / Detected 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, no material fraud by the company or any 

fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during 

the year. 

 

 

 

xi) Managerial Remuneration 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination 

of the records of the company, no managerial remuneration has been paid to any of the 

Key managerial persons. Hence, no comment is required under this clause. 

 

 

xii) Nidhi Company 

 

The company is not a Nidhi Company as mentioned in section 406 of the Companies Act, 

2013 and hence no comment is required on the same. 

 

 

 

xiii) Related Party Transactions 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, all transactions with the related parties 

are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable 

and the details of the transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as 

required by the accounting standards and The Companies Act, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

xiv) Preferential allotment 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential 

allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during 

the year under review and hence no comment is required on the same. 
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xv) Non-cash transactions 

 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into any non-

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and hence no comment is 

required on the same. 

 

 

xvi) Certification for Non-Banking Financial Institution 

 

The company is not a Non-Banking Financial Institution, hence registration under section 

45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 is not required. 

 

         

 

For B N Subramanya & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 004142S 

 

 

 

 

Girish Hoysala 

Partner 

Membership No. 220210 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date:  30th June, 2021 
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Annexure B to Auditors’ report  

 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. PAN 

ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LIMITED(“the Company”) as of March 31st, 2021 in conjunction 

with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 

controls based on, the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the “Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute 

of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 

financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 

Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 

section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 

financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 

auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 

policies and procedures that: 

 

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  

 

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 

preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 

accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and  

 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 

subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 

inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 

policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 

controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 

reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on, the internal control over 

financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 

Financial Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

For B N Subramanya & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg. No. 004142S 

 

 

 

 

Girish Hoysala 

Partner 

Membership No. 220210 

 

Place: Bengaluru 

Date:  30th June, 2021 
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Particulars
Note 

No.
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

a. Property, Plant and Equipment 3 6,25,58,848           22,84,98,134         
b. Capital work-in-progress -                       -                       
c. Investment Property -                       -                       
d. Goodwill -                       -                       
e. Other Intangible Assets -                       -                       
f. Intangible Assets under development -                       -                       
g. Biological Assets under development -                       -                       
h. Financial Assets

i. Investments 4 2,94,257               2,10,535               
ii. Trade Receivables -                       -                       
iii. Loans -                       -                       
iv. Others -                       -                       

i. Deferred tax assets (net) 5 -                       -                       
j. Other non-current assets -                       -                       

2. Current Assets
a. Inventories 6 78,33,337              69,08,204              
b. Financial assets

i.  Investments -                       -                       
ii. Trade receivables 7 8,50,662               8,41,910               
iii. Cash and cash equivalents 8 19,05,269              5,83,182               
iv. Bank balances other than (iii) above -                       -                       
v.  Loans -                       -                       
vi. Others -                       -                       

c. Current Tax assets (net) 3,03,750               -                       
d. Other Current assets 9 2,62,40,568           3,44,39,556           

Total Assets 9,99,86,691        27,14,81,520      

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY  

a. Equity Share Capital 10 4,00,00,000           4,00,00,000           
b. Other equity 11 (14,79,03,026)       3,49,51,368           

LIABILITIES
1. Non-current liabilities

a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 12 19,99,70,346         18,98,88,297         
ii. Trade Payables -                       -                       
iii. Other financial liabilities -                       -                       

b. Provisions 13 12,92,353              2,98,869               
c. Deferred tax liabilities (net) -                       -                       
d. Other non-current liabilities -                       -                       

2. Current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities

i. Borrowings 14 -                       17,04,362              
ii. Trade Payables 15

(a)total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises; and -                       -                       
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises. 35,13,646              5,44,899               
iii.Other financial Liabilities -                       -                       

b. Other current liabilities 16 31,05,509              40,93,727              
c. Provisions 17 7,864                    -                       
d. Current tax liabilities (net) -                       -                       

Total Equity and Liabilities 9,99,86,691        27,14,81,520      

Significant accounting policies 2        
Notes to accounts 3 to 36

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.
This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date. 

For B.N. Subramanya & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 004142S

Girish Hoysala Gullu G Talreja Abhishek P Talreja
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director
M.No: 220210 DIN: 01740145 DIN: 05007867

Place: Bangalore
Date: 30th June, 2021

Veena Tandur
Company Secretary
PAN: AGWPH 2548 A

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 

Pan Electronics (India) Limited
No.16B, 1st Phase,Peenya Industrial Estate,

Peenya, Bengaluru-560 058
CIN : L00309KA1982PLC004960
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[All amounts in INR]

Particulars
 Note 

No. 
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

REVENUE

Revenue from operations 17       -                        -                        

Other Income 18       5,61,63,708            4,99,717                 

Total Revenue 5,61,63,708          4,99,717               

EXPENSES

Cost of Materials Consumed 19       -                        -                        

Changes in inventories 20       -                        -                        

Employee benefit expenses 21       49,55,772               43,95,031               

Finance costs 22       45,99,374               34,99,696               

Depreciation and amortization 3         69,89,334               65,81,863               

Other Expenses 23       58,20,102               85,95,033               

Total Expenses 2,23,64,581           2,30,71,623           

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 3,37,99,126          (2,25,71,907)         

Exceptional items -                        -                        

Profit/(loss) before tax 3,37,99,126          (2,25,71,907)         

Tax expense:

1. Current tax -                        -                        

2. Deferred tax -                        -                        

Profit/(loss) for the period from continuing operations 3,37,99,126          (2,25,71,907)         

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations -                        -                        

Tax expense of discontinued operations -                        -                        

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax) -                        -                        

Profit/(loss) for the period 3,37,99,126          (2,25,71,907)         

Other Comprehensive Income -                        -                        

Items that will not be reclassified into profit and loss

 Total Comprehensive Income and Other Comprehensive Income for the period 

3,37,99,126          (2,25,71,907)         

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation)

Weighted average no. of equity shares

Basic (in Rs.) 8.4498                   (5.6430)                  

Diluted (in Rs.) 8.4498                   (5.6430)                  

 Earnings per equity share (for continuing and discontinued operation) 

Basic (in Rs.) 8.4498                   (5.6430)                  

Diluted (in Rs.) 8.4498                   (5.6430)                  

Significant accounting policies 1         
Notes to accounts 3 to 36

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

This is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date. 

For B.N. Subramanya & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004142S

Girish Hoysala Gullu G Talreja Abhishek P Talreja

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

M.No: 220210 DIN: 01740145 DIN: 05007867

Place: Bangalore

Date: 30th June, 2021 Veena Tandur

Company Secretary

PAN: AGWPH 2548 A

Pan Electronics (India) Limited

No.16B, 1st Phase,Peenya Industrial Estate,

Peenya, Bengaluru-560 058

CIN : L00309KA1982PLC004960

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
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  CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED                                                                                                                                                    

A  Cash flows from operating activities 

 Net Profit Before Taxation and Extraordinary item 3,37,99,126               (2,25,71,907)                

 Adjustments for: 

 Depreciation 69,89,334                  65,81,863                    

 Revaluation of Investments (83,722)                      1,58,825                      

 Provisions  (5,60,46,847)              (4,01,131)                     

 Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes (1,53,42,109)    (1,62,32,350)  

Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 29,68,747                  (11,27,698)                   

Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities (9,88,218)                   38,57,260                    

Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables (8,752)                        -                               

Decrease / (increase) in inventories (9,25,133)                   -                               

Decrease / (increase) in provisions 10,01,348                  (19,37,218)                   

Decrease / (increase) short term loans and advances 78,95,240                  

 Working Capital changes 99,43,232           7,92,345           

 Cash Generated from operations (53,98,877)       (1,54,40,006)  

 Income Tax (including Fringe Benefit Tax) -                     -                   

 Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Item (53,98,877)          (1,54,40,006)     

 Extra-ordinary items -                     -                   

 Net cash from operating activities (53,98,877)       (1,54,40,006)  

B  Cash flows from Investment activities 

 Additions to Fixed Assets (4,21,56,722)              (32,39,203)                   

 Advance for purchase of Fixed assets 4,05,00,000               (1,94,06,503)                

 Net cash from Investing activities (16,56,722)       (2,26,45,706)  

C  Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds of Other Long Term Liabilities 83,77,686                  3,85,45,360                  

 Net cash from Financing activities 83,77,686         3,85,45,360   

 Net Increase / Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 13,22,087           4,59,649           

 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5,83,182             1,23,535           

  Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 19,05,269         5,83,182         

 Notes to the cash flow statement: 

1  

2  

Particulars

Cash in hand

Bank Balance

    In Current account

    In Cash Credit

Total

3  

This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our Audit report of even date.

For B.N. Subramanya & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004142S

Girish Hoysala Gullu G Talreja Abhishek P Talreja

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

M.No: 220210 DIN: 01740145 DIN: 05007867

Place: Bangalore Veena Tandur

Date: 30th June, 2021 Company Secretary

PAN: AGWPH 2548 A

Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard 7 : "Statement of Cash Flows" as specified in Section

133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

31-Mar-21

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20

31-Mar-20

Components of Cash and Cash equivalents as per Ind AS 7 is as under:

Pan Electronics (India) Limited

No.16B, 1st Phase,Peenya Industrial Estate,

Peenya, Bengaluru-560 058

CIN : L00309KA1982PLC004960

[All amounts in INR]

5,00,544                                                  

12,890                                                     

The previous year's figure have been recast, restated wherever necessary to confirm to the current presentation.

69,748                                                     

5,83,182                                                

9,27,870                                                  

9,77,399                                                  

-                                                          

19,05,269                                              
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PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LTD

CIN - L00309KA1982PLC004960

No.16B, 1st Phase,Peenya Industrial Estate,Peenya, Bengaluru-560 058

Note-10-Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st December, 2020

A)Equity Share Capital

B)Other Equity(Note -11)

Central 

Subsidy

Share 

Premium

Capital 

Reserve

Retained 

Earnings

Balance at the end of the

reporting period -               -                     15,00,000    92,99,600    2,33,63,512    (24,49,55,264)      -                      -      -      24,57,43,520         -                      -             -      3,49,51,368        
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      -                     
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting

period

-               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      -                     
Total Comprehensive

Income for the year -               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      -                     
Dividends -               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      -                     
Tax on Dividend -               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      -                     
Transfer to retained earnings -               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      (21,66,53,520)        -                      -             -      (21,66,53,520)     
Any other change -               -                     -              -              -                 -                       -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      -                     
Profit for the year -               -                     -              -              -                 3,37,99,126          -                      -      -      -                        -                      -             -      3,37,99,126        
Balance at the end of the

reporting period 
-               -                     

15,00,000 92,99,600 2,33,63,512 (21,11,56,138)   -                    -     -     2,90,90,000         -                     -            -     (14,79,03,026)  

Balance at the beginning of the

reporting period

Changes in equity share capital during

the year
Balance at the end of the reporting period

4,00,00,000                                                                                                                                       -                                                                 4,00,00,000                                                                                               

Total Particulars

Share

application

money

pending

allotment

Equity

component of

compound

financial

instruments

Reserves and Surplus 

Debt instruments

through

Other

Comprehensive

Income 

Equity 

Instru

ments

through

Other

Compre

hensive

Income

Effectiv

e

portion

 of Cash

Flow

 Hedges 

Revaluation

Surplus 

Exchange

differences

on translating

the financial

statements of a

foreign operation

Other items

of Other

Comprehens

ive

Income 

Money

receive

d

against

 share

warrant

s
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PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LTD

CIN - L00309KA1982PLC004960

No.16B, 1st Phase,Peenya Industrial Estate,Peenya, Bengaluru-560 058

Note-10-Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A)Equity Share Capital

B)Other Equity(Note -11)

Central 

Subsidy

Share 

Premium
Capital Reserve Retained Earnings

Balance at the end of the

reporting period -           -                15,00,000     92,99,600     2,33,63,512      (22,23,83,357)       -                   -     -     24,57,43,520      -                   -             -         5,75,23,275      
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting

period

-           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Total Comprehensive

Income for the year -           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Dividends -           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Tax on Dividend -           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Transfer to retained earnings -           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Any other change -           -                -               -               -                  -                      -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         -                  
Profit for the year -           -                -               -               -                  (2,25,71,907)        -                   -     -     -                    -                   -             -         (2,25,71,907)    
Balance at the end of the

reporting period 
-           -                

15,00,000    92,99,600    2,33,63,512    (24,49,55,264)    -                   -    -     24,57,43,520    -                   -             -        3,49,51,368    

For B.N. Subramanya & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 004142S

Girish Hoysala Gullu G Talreja Abhishek P Talreja

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

M.No: 220210 DIN: 01740145 DIN: 05007867

Place: Bangalore

Date: 30th June, 2021 Veena Tandur

Company Secretary

PAN: AGWPH 2548 A

Balance at the beginning of the

reporting period

Changes in equity share capital during

the year
Balance at the end of the reporting period

4,00,00,000                                                                                      -                                                              4,00,00,000                                                                                          

Total Particulars

Share

application

money

pending

allotment

Equity

component of

compound

financial

instruments

Debt 

instruments

through

Other

Comprehensive

Income 

Equity 
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Notes to the financial statements

Note-3

As on As on As on As on As on As on
01.04.2020 31.03.2021 01.04.2020 31.03.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2019

Tangible Assets
Lease Hold Land 20,46,41,420    -                 1,36,900         20,45,04,520             -                   1,19,57,486      21,69,966    1,41,27,452      -                   -                   19,26,83,934    
Lease Hold Right 1,70,000           -                 1,70,000         -                            -                   61,578              1,261          62,839             -                   -                   1,08,422           

Building 2,61,80,137      -                 1,40,31,137    1,21,49,000               -                   1,52,94,719      3,99,874      1,56,94,593      -                   -                   1,08,85,418      

Plant and Machinery 19,62,53,727    4,21,56,722    -                 -                            23,84,10,449    17,15,13,708    43,38,396    -                   17,58,52,104    6,25,58,345      2,47,40,019      

Electrical Installation 34,17,741         -                 -                 -                            34,17,741         34,17,741         -              -                   34,17,741         -                   -                   

Furniture and Fixtures 3,44,435           -                 -                 -                            3,44,435           3,44,435           -              -                   3,44,435           -                   -                   

Office Equipment 12,09,819         -                 37,970            -                            11,71,849         11,29,477         79,837        37,970             11,71,344         505                  80,342              

Computer 28,07,796         -                 -                 -                            28,07,796         28,07,796         -              -                   28,07,796         -                   -                   

Vehicle 9,21,863           -                 -                 -                            9,21,863           9,21,863           -              -                   9,21,863           -                   -                   

Total 43,59,46,938  4,21,56,722  1,43,76,007  21,66,53,520            24,70,74,133  20,74,48,803  69,89,334  2,99,22,854    18,45,15,283  6,25,58,848     22,84,98,135  
Previous year Figures 43,27,07,735  32,39,203     -                 -                             43,59,46,938  20,08,66,941  65,81,863  -                   20,74,48,803  22,84,98,134  23,18,40,794  

(i)

(ii) 

 The recoverable amount of all assets exceeds the carrying amount , hence the Company has not recognized any impairment losses as required by Ind AS 36 as at that date.

The Depreciation is charged on Straight Line basis over the useful life of the assets as per Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.

      NET BLOCK

Deletions Deletions

Pan Electronics (India) Limited

Description
Additions Additions

GROSS BLOCK ( AT COST) DEPRECIATION
Adjusted against 

revaluation Reserve
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Pan Electronics (India) Limited
Notes to the financial statements

4 Non-current Assets- Investments
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Investment in  Equity Instruments 
    Quoted
         Investment carried at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 2,94,257              2,10,535             

2,94,257             2,10,535            

6 Inventories

As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Raw Materials 76,73,100             67,47,967           
Finished Goods 1,60,237              1,60,237             

78,33,337           69,08,204          

7 Current Assets - Trade Receivables

As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Unsecured, Considered Good

    Trade receivables 8,50,662              8,41,910             

8,50,662             8,41,910            

8 Cash & Cash Equivalents
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Cash in hand 9,27,870              5,00,544             

Balance with Bank
    In Current account 9,77,399              12,890                
    In Cash Credit -                      69,748                

19,05,269           5,83,182            
*Note- Cash Credit is secured by charge on entire current assets such as stocks, book debts and raw materials etc.

9 Other Current Assets

As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Others
Unsecured, Considered good

Advance to Suppliers 1,12,15,708          2,82,42,677         
Staff Advances 3,60,200              2,89,200             
Statutory / Government Authorities 1,46,64,658          59,07,679           

2,62,40,566        3,44,39,556       

10 Share Capital
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020
Authorised Capital

10,00,00,000        10,00,00,000       

Equity Shares with Voting Rights
Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid up shares

          4,00,00,000          4,00,00,000 

4,00,00,000          4,00,00,000         

(a) Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period Equity Shares

Number of shares Value of shares Number of shares Value of shares

At the beginning of the period 40,00,000             4,00,00,000       40,00,000             4,00,00,000         
Outstanding at the end of the period 40,00,000             4,00,00,000       40,00,000             4,00,00,000         

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

As at 31 March 2021

Total

Particulars

Particulars

Total

40,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up

(Previous Year 40,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each)

1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each

(Previous Year 1,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each)

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to

one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in indian rupees.

Total

Particulars

[1,23,120 (31 March 2019: 1,23,120) Equity Shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid in 

M/s. Venlon Enterprises Limited]

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020
Particulars

Particulars
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(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

No. of Shares % of shareholding No. of Shares % of shareholding

Gullu G. Talreja 28,17,560             70.44% 28,17,560             70.44%

(d) No shares are reserved for issue under options or contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/ dis-investment.

(e) There are no calls unpaid by directors or officers of the company.

(f) No Shares has been held by holding company/ ultimate holding company/subsidiaries/associates.

12 Non Current Liabilities- Borrowings
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Unsecured loan
Others

        - from Related parties 14,76,88,250        15,72,66,418       

Secured loan
Term loan 

        - from Punjab National bank 5,22,82,096          3,26,21,879         

19,99,70,346      18,98,88,297     

13 Non Current Liabilities- Provisions
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Provision for Gratuity and Leave encashment 4,47,688              2,98,869             

Other provisions 8,44,665              -                     

12,92,353           2,98,869            

14 Current Liabilties - Borrowings
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Secured Loan

        - from Punjab National bank -                      17,04,362           

-                      17,04,362          

15 Current Liabilities - Trade Payables
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Dues to
Micro and Small Enterprises -                      -                     
Others 35,13,646             5,44,899             

35,13,646           5,44,899            

Note: Balances of trade payables and classification of MSME are subject to confirmation by the concerned parties.

16 Other Current Liabilities
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Statutories Payable 31,05,509             38,37,605           
Bonus Payable -                      -                     
Leave Salary payable -                      -                     
Salary And Wages Payable -                      1,89,891             
Sipcot Maintainance Payable -                      22,542                
Electricity Charges Payable -                      43,689                

31,05,509           40,93,727          

17 Short Term Provisions
As at 

31 March 2021

As at 

31 March 2020

Provision for Gratuity and Leave encashment 7,864                   -                     

7,864                  -                     

31 March 2021

Particulars

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Total

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares would be entitled to receive remaining assets of the

Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares

held by the shareholders.

Name
31 March 2020

Particulars

Total

Total
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Notes to the financial statements

17 Revenue from Operations

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 

Sale of Products                             -   -                    

Less: Returns                             -   -                    

Total -                                                -   

18 Other income

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 

Interest on Income Tax Refund -                    1,880                 

Balances Written Back 33,139               4,76,533            

Interest from Fixed Deposit -                    21,304               

Profit on Sale of Asset 5,60,46,847       -                    

Restatement of Investments 83,722               -                    

Total       5,61,63,708            4,99,717 

19 Cost of Raw material consumed

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 
Inventory at the beginning of the year            67,47,967            67,47,967 

Add: Purchases             9,25,133                       -   

           76,73,100            67,47,967 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year            76,73,100            67,47,967 
Total                       -                         -   

20 Changes in inventories 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 
Inventory at the end of the year             1,60,237             1,60,237 

Inventory at the beginning of the year             1,60,237             1,60,237 

                        Total                       -                         -   

21 Employee benefits Expense

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 
Salaries, wages and bonus 47,72,317          43,54,744          

Staff Welfare -                    -                    

Gratuity and Leave Encashment 1,83,455            40,287               

Total          49,55,772          43,95,031 

22 Finance Charges

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 
Bank charges             1,18,163                83,433 

Loan Processing charges             2,65,694             8,67,240 

Interest to Term Loan            42,15,517            25,49,023 

Interest on cash credit account                       -                         -   
Total          45,99,374          34,99,696 

Pan Electronics (India) Limited

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars

Particulars
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23 Other Expenses

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 
Accomodation expenses 31,748               -                    

AGM Expenses 94,600               -                    

Business promotion expenses -                    -                    

Communication Expenses 8,271                 -                    

Custody Fee - NSDL 9,000                 -                    

Domain Renewal Charges 2,300                 -                    

E-voting Charges 5,000                 -                    

Folio Charges 25,165               -                    

Power, Fuel & Water Charges 9,08,235            5,32,562            

Repairs - Machinery 24,14,496          12,30,847          

Repairs - Other assets 5,29,802            27,62,927          

Monitoring Charges 21,800               -                    

Postage & Telephones -                    7,400                 

Travelling & Conveyance -                    15,649               

Printing & Stationery 1,330                 3,780                 

SIPCOT Maintenance -                    -                    

Miscellaneous Expenses -                    50,000               

Rates & Taxes 2,19,313            78,854               

Professional Charges 1,21,500            2,00,100            

Registration charges -                    -                    

Listing and membership fee 3,00,000            3,54,000            

Insurance 81,191               -                    

Licence Fees & Taxes 3,94,310            -                    

Security charges 2,56,000            3,82,774            

Freight charges 84,272               83,919               

Meeting and Conference expense -                    22,390               

Office Expenses -                    16,125               

Audit Fees 1,25,000            1,25,000            

Revaluation of Investments -                    1,58,825            

Balances Written Off 1,86,768            25,37,926          

Unclaimed IGST -                    31,955               

Total          58,20,102          85,95,033 

24 Capital Commitments

The Company does not have any capital commitments as on the Balance Sheet date. (PY - Nil)

25 Contingent liabilities 

26 Disclosures in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises:

27 Foreign Exchange Earnings, Expenditure and Earnings

The company does not have any transactions in foreign currency during the year.

28

29 Payment to Auditors

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2021 

 For the year 

ended 

31 March 2020 

As Auditor             1,25,000             1,25,000 
For Taxation Matters -                          -                          

For Certification Charges -                          -                          

Total            1,25,000            1,25,000 

Company does not have any outstanding due as at 31st March to Suppliers under the micro, small and 

Medium enterprises Development Act, requiring disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006(MSMED Act). Refer Note-28

Trade Payables, Classification of MSME, Other Current Liabilities, Trade Receivables, Non Current 

Assets, Other Current Assets  and Loans & Advances are subject to confirmation.

Particulars

There are no contingent liabilties as on Balance Sheet date.

Particulars
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Note-31

a) Defined Benefit Plans

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

Components of Employer Expenses 
Current Service cost 1,07,686   1,03,924   
Past service cost - Plan Amendment -           -           
Interest on Obligations 9,984        30,513      
Expected Return on Plan Assets -           -           
Net actuarial loss/ (gain) recognized during the year 65,786      (3,93,365)  

Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit & 

Loss 1,83,456   (2,58,928)  

Net asset/(liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet 
 Present Value of defined benefit Obligation 3,31,365   1,47,909   
 Fair value of plan assets -           -           
 Funded status[Surplus/(deficit)] -           -           
 Unrecognised past service costs -           -           

Actuarial assumptions 
 Discount Rate 6.75% 6.75%
 Expected Return on Plan Assets 5.00% 5.00%

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20

 Changes in Defined Obligations 
 Obligations at period beginning - Current 2,507        2,907        
 Obligations at period beginning - Non Current 1,48,453   1,52,016   
 Service Cost 1,07,847   19,938      
 Interest on Defined benefit obligation 10,190      11,619      
 Benefits settled (5,483)       (44,250)     
 Actuarial gain/(loss) (1,39,326)  8,730        

 Obligations at period end 
Current Liability (within 12 months) 2,064        2,507        
Non Current Liability 1,22,124   1,48,453   

 Expenses recognized in the P&L account and Other 

Comprehensive Income
Service cost 1,07,847   19,938      
Interest cost 10,190      11,619      
Benefits paid (5,483)       (44,250)     
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (1,39,326)  8,730        

 Assumptions 
 Discount factor 6.75% 6.75%
 Salary increase 5.00% 5.00%

The disclosure as per Indian Accounting Standard 19 "Employee Benefits"are 

given below
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PAN ELECTRONICS (INDIA) LTD
CIN - L00309KA1982PLC004960
No.16B, 1st Phase,Peenya Industrial Estate,Peenya, Bengaluru-560 058

Note-32-Financial Instruments by category

Particulars
Fair value through 

profit and loss 

Fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income

Amortised cost

Financial Assets
Investments in Equity Instruments 2,94,257                     -                                       -                                       

Trade Receivables -                                       -                                       8,50,662                     

Cash and Cash Equivalents -                                       -                                       19,05,269                   

Total 2,94,257                   -                            27,55,931                 

Financial Liabilties
Borrowings -                                       -                                       19,99,70,346              

Trade Payables -                                       -                                       -                             

Total -                            -                            19,99,70,346            

Particulars
Fair value through 

profit and loss 

Fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income

Amortised cost

Financial Assets
Investments in Equity Instruments 2,10,535                     -                                       -                                       

Trade Receivables -                                       -                                       8,41,910                     

Cash and Cash Equivalents -                                       -                                       5,83,182                     

Total 2,10,535                   -                            14,25,092                 

Financial Liabilties
Borrowings -                                       -                                       19,15,92,659              

Trade Payables -                                       -                                       -                             

Total -                            -                            19,15,92,659            

Note-33-Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Investments in Equity Instruments 2,94,257                     2,94,257                     -                                       -                                    

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Investments in Equity Instruments 2,10,535                     2,10,535                     -                                       -                                    

Note-34-Capital Management

Note-34(i)-Debt to Equity Ratio

Particulars As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2019

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the period.

Particulars As of March 31, 2020
Fair Value measurement at the end of the year using

The Company’s capital management objectives are: 
-to ensure the Company's ability to continue as going concern

and 

-to provide an adequate return to shareholders through optimisation of debts and equity balance.

 The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of debt less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the 

financial statements. 

The Company’s objective for capital management is to maintain an optimum overall financial structure.

Fair Value measurement at the end of the year using
As of March 31, 2021Particulars

The fair value heirarchy of assets and liabilties measured as fair value as of 31-Mar-20 is as follows:

The fair value heirarchy of assets and liabilties measured as fair value as of 31-Mar-19 is as follows:

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the period.

Level 3-Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31- Mar- 21 are as follows

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories as of 31- Mar- 2020 are as follows

Level 1-Quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2-Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly(i.e. as prices) or 

indirectly(i.e. derived from prices)
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Debt (includes non-current, current 

borrowings and current maturities of 

long term debt) 19,99,70,346              19,15,92,659              
Less : cash and cash equivalents 19,05,269                   5,83,182                     
Net debt 19,80,65,077            19,10,09,477            
Total equity (10,79,03,027)             7,49,51,367                
Net debt to total equity ratio -184% 255%

Note-34(ii)-The Company has not declared any dividend during the year.

Note-35-Financial Risk Management

(i) Credit risk

Investments

Trade receivables

Trade receivables
less than 180 days -                             -                             
180 - 365 days -                             -                             
beyond 365 days 8,50,662                     8,41,910                     

8,50,662                   8,41,910                   

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,41,910                     8,70,662                     

Addition -                             -                             

Write - offs 8,752                          (28,752)                       

Recoveries -                             -                             

Balance at the end of the year 8,50,662                   8,41,910                   

(ii) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company manages its

liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal

and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.

Year ended            

31 March, 2021

Year ended            

31 March, 2020

Financial assets for which loss allowances is measured using the 

expected credit loss

Particulars

Total

Particulars

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance on trade 

receivables

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s risk

management assessment and policies and processes are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Company, to set

appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor such risks and compliance with the same. Risk assessment and management policies

and processes are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual

obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, loans and investments. Credit risk is managed through

credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Company grants

credit terms in the normal course of business

The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by generally investing in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a good credit

rating. The Company does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counter-parties, and does not have any significant

concentration of exposures to specific industry sectors or specific country risks.

As at 31 March, 2021 As at 31 March, 2020

The Company has used Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for assessing the impairment loss. For the purpose, the Company uses a provision

matrix to compute the expected credit loss amount. The provision matrix takes into account external and internal risk factors and historical

data of credit losses from various customers.
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FRN: 004142S

Girish Hoysala Gullu G Talreja Abhishek P Talreja

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

M.No: 220210 DIN: 01740145 DIN: 05007867

Place: Bangalore

Date: 30th June, 2021

Veena Tandur

Company Secretary

PAN: AGWPH 2548 A

The company has taken into accounts all possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the

financial statements.

However , the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The

company will closely monitor any material changes to future economic condition.

Note-36 -Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic

The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted business around the globe. In many countries, including India, there has been severe

disruption to regular business operations due to lock downs, disruption in transportation, supply chain , travel bans, quarantines, social

distancing and other emergency measures.

As the situation is constantly evolving the company has considered various internal and external information available up to the date of

approval of financial statements in assessing the impact of COVID-19 pandemic in the financial statement for the year ended March

31,2021.
Management is of the view that there is significant uncertainty in the business environment which has resulted in delays in confirmation of

customer orders and in executing the orders in hand and an increase in lead time in sourcing components. Based on current assessment,

management is of the view that the situation is likely to continue for the next quarter.

The company have borrowings amounting to Rs.19,99,70,346/-. In the view of the management, there is no major impact on the

immediate liquidity position of the company as on the date on which financial statements are approved.

The company has made an assessment on carrying values of its assets comprising Property , Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets,

Inventory and Financial assets and has concluded that no further adjustments are required to be made to the carrying values of such assets

as at March 31,2021.
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Pan Electronics (India) Limited  

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 

Note 1 

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements 

The Accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 

Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost convention and on accrual basis except for 

certain financial instruments which are measured in fair value, applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with rule 3 of the 

Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies ( Indian 

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016. 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting 

standard is initially adopted or revision to an existing accounting standard requires a 

change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. 

Note 2  

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

1. Use of Estimates  

 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure 

of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.  Although these 

estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and 

actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the 

outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or 

liabilities in future periods.   

 

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value 

for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements 

as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use 

that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition. 

  

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and 

equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value. 

 

2. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and impairment loss, if any. 
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Expenditure which are of a Capital nature are Capitalized at cost, which comprises 

purchase price (net of rebates and discounts), duties, levies and any directly 

attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended 

use. 

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value 

for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements 

as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use 

that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition.  

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and 

equipment at their previous GAAP carrying value. 

 

3. Depreciation and Amortisation 

(i) Up to 31st March, 2014, depreciation is provided from the date the assets 

have been installed and put to use, on Straight Line Method at the rates 

specified in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. 

 

(ii) With effect from 1st April, 2014, depreciation on assets carried at historical 

cost is provided on Straight Line Method based on useful life as under: 

 

Category of the Asset No of useful life in years 

Building 30 

Plant and Machinery 15 

Electrical Installations 10 

Furniture and Fixtures 10 

Office Equipment 5 

Computer and Accessories 3 

Vehicles 8 

 

(iii) The carrying value of the assets as on April 1st, 2014, is depreciated over 

the remaining useful life of the asset determined based on useful life 

mentioned in clause (ii) supra. 

(iv) Where the useful life of the asset is NIL as on 1st April, 2014, the carrying 

value as on 1st April, 2014, has been added to the opening balance of deficit 

in the Statement of Profit and Loss in accordance with Schedule II of the 

Companies Act, 2013. 

 

4. Inventories: 

 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes 

purchase price, duties, transport & handing costs and other costs directly 
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attributable to the acquisition and bringing the inventories to their present location 

and condition.  

 

The basis of determination of cost remains as follows:  

 

a) Raw material, Packing Material – at actual cost. 

b) Stores & spares: at actual cost.  

c) Work-in-progress: Cost of input plus overhead upto the stage of completion.  

d) Finished Goods: Cost of input plus appropriate overhead 

 

5. Financial Instruments 

 

(i) Financial Assets  

 

Initial Recognition and Measurement  

 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of 

financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction 

costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial 

assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured at fair 

value or as financial assets measured at amortized cost. 

 

Subsequent Measurement  

 

For purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two 

broad categories:- 

 

• Financial Assets at fair value  

• Financial assets at amortized cost  

 

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either 

recognized entirely in the statement of profit and loss or recognized in other 

comprehensive income.  

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at 

amortized cost.  

 

• Business Model Test: The objective of the company’s business model is 

to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows. 

• Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair 

value through Other Comprehensive Income:- 
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• Business Model Test: The financial asset is held within a business model 

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 

selling financial assets.  

• Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial 

asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of 

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  

 

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss. 

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with 

value changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

Impairment of financial assets 

 

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model 

at an amount equal to:-  

 

• 12 months expected credit losses, or 

• Lifetime expected credit losses  

depending upon whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since 

initial recognition. 

 

However, for trade receivables, the company does not track the changes in credit 

risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at 

each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

 

 

 

 

 

(ii) Financial Liabilities 

 

All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and, in the case of 

loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction 

costs.  

 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value 

through profit and loss (FVTPL). A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it 

is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or is designated as such 

on initial recognition. Financial Liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value 

and net gain or losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in 

statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently 

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest 

expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement 

of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also recognized in 

statement of profit and loss. 
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6. Borrowing costs: 

 

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 

production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as a part of the cost of such asset 

till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.  

 

Borrowing cost consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection 

with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also includes exchange differences to 

the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. A qualifying asset is 

an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its 

intended use or sale. All other borrowing cost are recognized as expense in the 

period in which they are incurred. 

 

7. Segment Reporting: 

 

The Companies monitors the operating results of its business segments separately 

for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance 

assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and is 

measured consistently with profit and loss in the financial statements 

 

8. Foreign Currency Transactions: 

 

All foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of 

the transaction.  Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities other than net 

investments in non-integral foreign operations are translated at the exchange rate 

prevailing on the balance sheet date and exchange gains and losses are recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss.   

 

 

 

9. Income taxes: 

 

Tax expense comprising current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the Profit 

and Loss Statement for the period.  Current tax is the amount of income tax 

determined to be payable in respect of taxable income as computed under the tax 

laws.  

 

Deferred tax asset or liability is recognised for timing differences between the 

profit/(loss) as per financial statements and the profit/(loss) offered for income tax, 

based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 

sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty in 

the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company that sufficient future taxable 

income will be available against which such assets can be realised in future.  The 

carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each financial year 

and adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 
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income will be available in future to allow in part or whole of the deferred tax asset 

to be utilised. 

 

10. Cash & Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise of 

cash at bank and in hand and short-term investments with an original maturity of 

three months or less. 

 

11. Earnings per share 

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period 

attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity 

shares outstanding during the period.   

 

The diluted earnings per share is calculated after considering adjustments for the 

effect of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 
12. Leases 

 Operating Lease: Leases of assets where all the risks and rewards of ownership 

are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease 

payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense with reference 

to lease terms and other considerations. 

 

 Finance Lease: Leases of assets other than operating leases are classified as 
finance lease.  The Lower of assets and present value of the minimum lease 

rentals is capitalized as fixed assets with corresponding amount shown as lease 

liability. The principal component in the lease rental is adjusted against the lease 

liability and the interest component is charged to profit and loss account. 

 

 

13. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Capital 

Commitments: 

 

Disputed liabilities and claims against the company including claims raised by fiscal 

authorities (e.g. Sales Tax, Income Tax Excise etc.) pending in appeal / court for 

which no reliable estimate can be made and or involves uncertainty of the outcome 

of the amount of the obligation or which are remotely poised for crystallization are 

not provided for in accounts but disclosed in notes to accounts.  

 

However, present obligation as a result of past event with possibility of outflow of 

resources, when reliable estimation can be made of the amount of obligation, is 

recognized in accounts in terms of discounted value, if the time value of money is 

material using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risk specific to the liability. 

 

No contingent asset is recognized but disclosed by way of notes to accounts. 
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14. Impairment of assets 

 

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 

recoverable amount/Value in use. 

Recoverable amount is determined: 

 

a. In the case of an individual asset, a higher of the net selling price and the 

value in use; 

 

b. In the case of a cash generating unit (a group of assets that generates 

identified, independent cash flows), at higher of the cash generating unit’s 

selling price and the value in use. 

 

 
Value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from 

the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. 

 

 

15.  Cash flow statement: 

 

Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the 

Indian Accounting Standard 7: "Statement of Cash Flows" as specified in Section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014. 

 

For B.N. Subramanya & Co.   For and on behalf of the Board of Directors  

 Chartered Accountants    
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Place: Bangalore   
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